
Service Director – Legal, Governance and
Commissioning
Julie Muscroft

Governance and Democratic Services

Civic Centre 3

High Street

Huddersfield

HD1 2TG

Tel: 01484 221000 

Please ask for: Yolande Myers

Email: yolande.myers@kirklees.gov.uk

Tuesday 31 October 2017

Notice of Meeting
Dear Member

Cabinet

The Cabinet will meet in the Leadership Meeting Room  - 1st Floor, Civic 
Centre 3, Huddersfield, HD1 2TG at 1.30 pm on Wednesday 8 November 
2017.

The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details.

Julie Muscroft
Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning

Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



The Cabinet members are:-

Member Responsible For:
Councillor David Sheard Leader of the Council with shared Portfolio for 

Strategy and Strategic Resouces, New Council & 
Regional Issues

Councillor Shabir Pandor Deputy Leader of the Council with shared Portfolio for 
Strategy and Strategic Resources, New Council & 
Regional Issues

Councillor Peter McBride Cabinet Member - Economy (Strategic Planning, 
Regenration and Transport)

Councillor Naheed Mather Cabinet Member - Economy (Strategic Housing, 
Regeneration and Enforcement)

Councillor Musarrat Khan Cabinet Member - Coprorate (Place, Environment and 
Customer Contact Services)

Councillor Erin Hill Cabinet Member - Children (Statutory Responsibility 
for Children)

Councillor Viv Kendrick Cabinet Member - Adults & Public Health (Statutory 
Reponsibility for Adults and Public Health)

Councillor Masood Ahmed Cabinet Member - Children
Councillor Graham Turner Cabinet Member - Corporate (Place, Environment and 

Customer Contact Services)
Councillor Cathy Scott Cabinet Member - Adults and Public Health (Cabinet 

Lead on Democracy Commission)



Agenda
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached

Pages

1:  Membership of the Committee

To receive apologies for absence of Members who are unable to 
attend this meeting.

2:  Interests

The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests.

1 - 2

3:  Admission of the Public

Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private.

4:  Deputations/Petitions

The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people 
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation.

5:  Public Question Time

The Committee will hear any questions from the general public.



6:  Member Question Time

To consider questions from Councillors.

7:  Contract Bid for the Provision of National Driver 
Offender Retraining Scheme - Lot for West Yorkshire

A report seeking permission to complete, and submit, an Invitation to 
Tender to deliver National Driver Offender Retraining (NDOR’s)  courses to 
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner West Yorkshire.

Officer: Elizabeth Twitchett
Wards: All 

3 - 6



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
 

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2:



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 2



Name of meeting: CABINET 

Date: November 2017

Title of report: Contract Bid for the Provision of National Driver 
Offender Retraining Scheme – Lot for West Yorkshire

Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?

No 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? No 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny? No - The Chair of Scrutiny has 
withdrawn the right for call-in on 
this report.

Date signed off by Director & name

Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources?

Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director - Legal & Governance?

Debbie Hogg 31.10.2017

Cabinet member portfolio Highways and Neighbourhoods

Electoral wards affected: ALL

Ward councillors consulted: n/a

Public or private: Public

1.  Summary

Commercial Regulatory and Operational Service (Highways) request 
permission to complete, and submit, an Invitation To Tender to deliver 
National Driver Offender Retraining (NDOR’s) courses to the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner West Yorkshire.

2.  Information required to make a decision

2.1 Financial Procedure Rule 20.5 requires Cabinet to give consent for the 
Council to do external work over £100k. 

2.2 On that basis, in 2014, Cabinet approved a bid for the Provision of 
National Driver Offender Retraining Schemes for West Yorkshire 
Police. The Council was successful in that tender bid and has then 
been delivering, NDORS driver improvement courses under contract to 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7:

http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/ForwardPlan/forwardplan.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/scrutiny/Scrutiny.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/cabinet/cabinet.asp
http://www2.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/councillors/yourcouncillors.asp


West Yorkshire Police since June 2014.This contract was a 2 years 
contract with an option for two further one year extensions (total 4 
years duration),. That full 4 year term comes to an end 31 May 2018.

 
2.3 On 11th October, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 

West Yorkshire (OPCC WY) released an Invitation to Tender (ITT) for 
the Provision of NDORS courses, in a 3 lot contract - North, South and 
West Yorkshire, for the delivery of the suite of NDORS courses from 
June 2018 onwards. This is again a 2 year contract, with an option for 2 
x 1 year extensions. The ITT requires a 30 day response time.   

2.4 The tender has to be submitted by noon on 10 Nov 2017 and 
Highways Driver Training Team, on behalf of Kirklees Council would 
like to submit a bid to deliver NDORS driver improvement courses. The 
ITT response would be for Lot 3 - West Yorkshire only. Cabinet are 
asked to approve the submission of this tender bid.

3.  Implications for the Council 

3.1 Early Intervention and Prevention (EIP) 

The contract provides income which supports Highways schemes and 
initiatives aimed at reducing the risk of road casualties occurring in Kirklees.

3.2 Economic Resilience (ER)

This contract will provide income for the Council which will support a number 
of Services either directly or indirectly - for example, Taxi Licencing, Transport 
Services, Kirklees Direct, Document Solutions and Community Languages. 

This contract provides employment for 35 local driving instructors and 
supports local businesses by utilising venues across our, and our 
neighbouring districts. It is being prepared to include due regard for The 
Equality Act 2010 and The Public Sector Equality Duty 2011.

3.3 Improving Outcomes for Children 

The contract provides income which supports Highways schemes and 
initiatives and targeted training aimed at reducing the risk of children being 
involved in road collisions in Kirklees.

3.4 Reducing Demand for Services

Driver Training is a key strand of the Council’s Killed and Seriously Injured 
(KSI) Casualty Reduction Strategy and has been since the late 1990’s. 
This contract has and if we are successful will continue to enhance 
partnership working with West Yorkshire police, building on existing 
relationships such as the West Yorkshire Safety Camera Partnership, West 
Yorkshire Safer Roads Group and our working relationships with our Local 
Neighbourhood Policing Team’s and reduce casualties on our roads. 

Page 4



4.  Consultees and their opinions

The Chief Executive has been consulted on the submission of the tender.

The Leader, the Deputy Leader, and Cabinet members have been consulted 
on the submission of this tender bid

The Council will be required to enter into a minimum 2 year contract with The 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. Council’s Legal representatives 
have been consulted and are comfortable with the contract specification. 
Should there be any legal and or financial contract implications that cannot be 
mitigated; the Council can withdraw its tender submission at a later date.

5.  Next steps 

If approved Highways will submit the ITT on 10 November and await the 
outcome of the tender bid.  Notification of the successful bidder is expected in 
January 2018.

6.  Officer recommendations and reasons

That the submission of the Invitation to Tender documentation, for the delivery 
of NDORS Driver Improvement Courses, be approved.

7.  Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation 

The Cabinet portfolio holders, Cllr Musarrat Khan and Cllr Graham Turner 
support the submission of this tender bid.

8.  Contact officer and relevant papers

Elizabeth Twitchett, Operational Manager, Highways
Tel: 76056, (external) 01484 221000
Email:  Elizabeth.Twitchett@kirklees.gov.uk 

9.  Background Papers and History of Decisions 

None

10. Service Director responsible

Joanne Bartholomew – Service Director, Commercial, Regulatory and 
Operational Services
Tel: 01484 221000
Email:  Joanne.Bartholomew@kirklees.gov.uk 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2: Interests
	7: Contract Bid for the Provision of National Driver Offender Retraining Scheme - Lot for West Yorkshire

